
INFRASTRUCTURE & EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE HYBRID MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18TH, 2025 AT 9:30 A.M. 
AGENDA 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89650377741?pwd=siRpaw7GunYDAr0Ih87oRuBIe63K1G.1 

 

Meeting ID: 896 5037 7741 

Passcode: 161108 

 

One tap mobile 

+17806660144,,89650377741#,,,,*161108# Canada 

+12042727920,,89650377741#,,,,*161108# Canada 

 

1. Call to Order 

Welcome to all in Attendance and note to the Public – this Committee 
meeting is being recorded and will be available on the Township website 
under the Boards and Committee (Infrastructure and Emergency 
Management Committee) section within 5 business days of the Committee 
meeting. 

2. Land Acknowledgement 

We would like to begin by acknowledging that Melancthon Township recognizes the 
ancestral lands and treaty territories of the Tionontati (Petun/Wyandot(te)), 
Haudenosaunee (Six Nations), and Anishinaabe Peoples.  The Township of Melancthon 
resides within the lands named under the Haldimand Deed of 1784 and the Lake 
Simcoe-Nottawasaga Treaty (Treaty 18).  

These territories upon which we live and learn, are steeped in rich Indigenous history 
and traditions.  It is with this statement that we declare to honour and respect the past 
and present connection of Indigenous peoples with this land, its waterways, and 
resources. 

3. Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda 

Moved by _____________ Seconded by ______________ be it resolved that the 
agenda be approved as ________________________. 

4. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest or Conflict of Interest 

5. Acceptance of Draft Minutes – October 6th, 2025 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89650377741?pwd=siRpaw7GunYDAr0Ih87oRuBIe63K1G.1


Moved by _____________ Seconded by ___________ be it resolved that the 
minutes of the Infrastructure and Emergency Management Committee Meeting held on 
October 6th, 2025, be approved as circulated.  

6. Business Arising from Minutes 

7. Correspondence Items 

8. General Business 

1. Update from Public Works Superintendent 

2. Update on Capital Project (260 Sideroad)  

3. Report from Craig Micks & Kaitlin Dinnick – 2026 Public Works Capital 
Expenditures 

4. Report from Craig Micks & Kaitlin Dinnick – 5 Year Capital Plan 

5. Black Cat Radar Data for 8th Line NE and County Road 17 

6. Email from Kaitlin DeVore Requesting the Speed Limit to be Reduced on 
County Road 17 (Deferred from Council)  

7. RJ Burnside and Associates – Technical Memo – Bridge 7 Rehabilitation 

8.  Grey Highlands – Road Surface Conversion Policy 

9. Ontario Launches Pothole Prevention and Repair Program 

10. Update on Proposed Riverview Park  

11. Discussion on Park Structures and Infrastructure Needs 

12. Discussion on Horning’s Mills Hall Infrastructure Needs 

13. Other/Additions 

9. Recommendations to Council 

10. Public Question Period 

11. Confirmation Motion 

Moved by _____________ Seconded by _______________ be it resolved that 
all actions of the Members and Officers of the Infrastructure and Emergency 
Management Committee with respect to every matter addressed and/or adopted by the 
Board on the above date be hereby adopted, ratified, and confirmed; and each motion, 
resolution and other actions taken by the Board members and Officers at the meeting 
held on the above date are hereby adopted, ratified, and confirmed. 



12. Adjournment and Date of Next Meeting 

Moved by _____________ Seconded by _____________ be it resolved that we 
adjourn this Infrastructure and Emergency Management Committee meeting to meet 
again on _______________________, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. or at the call of the Chair.  



The Corporation of 
THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 
157101 Hwy. 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 
 
 
 

 Corporation of the Township of Melancthon 
Memorandum 

 
TO:  Members of the Infrastructure & Emergency Management 

Committee 
 

FROM: Craig Micks – Public Works Superintendent & Kaitlin Dinnick – 
Deputy Clerk/Planning Coordinator 

 

SUBJECT: 2026 Public Works Capital Expenditure Recommendations 
 

DATE: November 18th, 2025 
        
 

Background/Executive Summary 

This Report will identify Capital Expenditures for the 2026 budget. These 
recommendations are based on the Road Management Plan and 2025 Bridge Study and 
on the needs identified through patrolling the Township Road Network.   
 

Options, Analysis and Financial Impact 

Below are two options for 2026 Road Projects:  
 

Option 1: 
 

Road Section Approx KMs Approx Cost 

260 Sideroad – 2nd Line SW to Highway 10 (2nd Lift – 
paved in 2021) includes lift on paved shoulder 

2.3 kms $325,000 

7th Line SW – 2kms South of 077572 7th Line SW 2 kms $400,000 

Total Cost  $725,000 

 
Option 2: 
 

Road Section Approx KMs Approx Cost 

260 Sideroad – 2nd Line SW to Highway 10 (2nd Lift – 
paved in 2021) includes lift on paved shoulder 

2.3kms $325,000 

Total Cost  $325,000 

 



260 Sideroad between 2nd Line SW and Highway 10 was paved in 2021 and requires the 
2nd lift to be added to ensure the life expectance of the pavement. As it has been 5 
years since the original paving was completed, Township Staff feel this should be made 
a priority for 2026 to preserve the life of the pavement. 7th Line SW is in rough shape 
with the worst section being the approximately 2kms south from 077572 7th Line SW.  
Staff would recommend based on the road conditions that Council proceed with Option 
1, however if Council would like to only proceed with one road project in 2026 Staff 
recommend Option 2.  
 
This is what the Road Management Plan proposes for 2026 which includes the 4th Line 
OS and Hunter Parkway projects that were not completed in 2025. Township Staff feel 
that these roads are not more of a priority than the recommended roads above and 
should be reevaluated in 2027.  
 

Road Management Suggestions for 2026 

5 Sideroad 3rd Line OS to County Rd 124 1.3km $275,000   
 
$1,695,000  

3rd Line OS County Rd 17 to 15 Sideroad 3km $600,000  

3rd Line OS 5 Sideroad to County Rd 17 3km $600,000  

4th Line OS County Road 17 S to Lot 9 & 10 750m $150,000 

Hunter Parkway 5 Sideroad to County Road 124 300m $70,000  
 

Below is a chart of the road projects identified already for the 2027 budget that should 
be kept in mind which includes the projects that Township Staff are proposing 
postponing: 
 

Road Management Suggestions for 2027 (including 2026 postponed projects) 

7th Line SW 280 Sideroad 2kms North 2km $400,000  
 
 
$2,895,000  

2nd Line SW 260 Sideroad to 270 Sideroad 2km $400,000 

2nd Line SW 260 Sideroad to 250 Sideroad 2km $400,000 

5 Sideroad 3rd Line OS to County Rd 124 1.3km $275,000  

3rd Line OS County Rd 17 to 15 Sideroad 3km $600,000  

3rd Line OS 5 Sideroad to County Rd 17 3km $600,000  

4th Line OS County Road 17 S to Lot 9 & 10 750m $150,000 

Hunter Parkway 5 Sideroad to County Road 124 300m $70,000  
 

Below are the 2026 Capital Assets: 
 

Equipment           Cost 

Tractor with Brusher & Snowblower Attachment $500,000 Approx 

Backhoe $300,000 Approx 

 
Purchasing a tractor with a brusher attachment and snow blower would eliminate these 
recurring budget items going forward once the equipment is received. This purchase 



can be funded up to $500,000 through Development Charges. Public Works is also 
hoping to demo an ILF Kommunal this fall, which may be considered as an alternative 
to the tractor if Staff determine that it is a better fit for the Township’s needs. It is 
recommended that once quotes are obtained for either the tractor and attachments or 
the ILF Kommunal — including all required specifications — Council consider 
suspending the Procedural By-law to allow acceptance of one of the quotes without 
proceeding through the full tender process. This approach would save both money and 
staff time and would also allow the Township to obtain quotes from nearby dealerships, 
which is beneficial for servicing. This item was originally budgeted to purchase in 2025 
and Township Staff are still hopefully this will be able to be purchased and delivered in 
2025 however if it is not, we would recommend that it be put back into the budget for 
2026, as the cost will be funded primarily, if not entirely, through Development 
Charges, the budget implications will be minimal. The Township backhoe is currently 26 
years old and is starting to break down. Staff would recommend that we budget to 
purchase a backhoe in the 2026 budget.  
 
Below are the 2026 Bridge Recommendations: 
 

Bridge Work           Cost 

Bridge 7 – 7th Line SW Rehabilitation (Engineering 
completed in 2025. 

Approx $405,000  

 
The engineering work for Bridge 7 was completed in 2025 and is scheduled to be 
rehabilitated in 2026, Staff recommend that this project be completed in 2026 as 
scheduled.  
 
Recommendation 

THAT the Infrastructure and Emergency Management Committee receive the Report of 

Craig Micks, Public Works Superintendent and Kaitlin Dinnick, Deputy Clerk/ Planning 

Coordinator dated November 18th, 2026 entitled 2026 Public Works Capital Expenditure 

Recommendations; 

AND THAT the Committee recommend to Council that they review and apply this 

information during 2026 budget discussions. 

 

Respectfully Submitted: 

Craig Micks, Public Works Superintendent 

Kaitlin Dinnick, Deputy Clerk/Planning Coordinator  



The Corporation of 
THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 
157101 Hwy. 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 
 

 
 

 Corporation of the Township of Melancthon 
Memorandum 

 
TO:  Members of the Infrastructure & Emergency Management 

Committee 
 

FROM: Craig Micks – Public Works Superintendent & Kaitlin Dinnick – 
Deputy Clerk/Planning Coordinator 

 

SUBJECT: Five (5) Year Capital Plan Summary 
 

DATE: November 18th, 2025 
        
 

Background/Executive Summary 

This Report will identify Capital Road, Bridge and Equipment Upgrades over the next 5 
years. These recommendations are based on the Road Management Plan, Bridge Study 
and on the needs identified by the Public Works Department.   
 

Options, Analysis and Financial Impact 

5 Year Capital Road Projects 2026-2030 
 

 
 

Road Road Section

Approximate 

Distance

Approximate 

Costing

Annual 

Total

260 Sideroad 2
nd

 Line SW to Highway 10 (2
nd

 Lift) 2km $325,000

7th Line SW 2kms South of 077572 7th Line SW 2km $400,000

7th Line SW 280 Sideroad 2kms North 2km $400,000

Hunter Parkway 5 Sideroad to County Rd 124 300m $70,000

4th Line OS County Rd 17 S to Lot 9 & 10 750m $150,000

2nd Line SW 300 Sideroad to County Rd 17 2km $400,000

2nd Line SW County Rd 17 to 270 Sideroad 4km $800,000

5 Sideroad 3rd Line OS to County Rd 124 1.3km $275,000

3rd Line OS County Rd 17 to 15 Sideroad 3km $600,000

3rd Line OS 5 Sideroad to County Rd 17 3km $600,000

2nd Line SW 270 Sideroad to 250 Sideroad 4km $800,000

3rd Line OS 15 Sideroad 1km North 1km $200,000

3rd Line OS 20 Sideroad to County Rd 21 3km $600,000

20 Sideroad County Rd 124 to 3rd Line OS 1.25km $350,000

5 Year Total $5,970,000

2030

$620,000

$1,475,000

$2,000,000

$1,150,000

$725,000

5 YEAR CAPTIAL PLAN - ROADS

2026

2027

2028

2029



5 Year Capital Bridge Projects 2026-2030 
 

 

 
5 Year Capital Equipment 2026-2030 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Equipment Approximate Costing Comments

Backhoe $300,000 Would replace current backhoe

Plow Truck $450,000 Would replace a plow truck

Pick-up Truck $110,000 Would replace a Truck

Grader $1,000,000 Would replace a Grader

Plow Truck $450,000 Would replace a plow truck

5 Year Total $2,310,000

2030

2029

5 YEAR CAPTIAL PLAN - EQUIPMENT

2026

2027

2028

Structure 

No./Name Road Name Recommended Work

Estimated 

Cost 

Annual 

Costing

7 7th Line SW Engineering – Design (Rehabilitation) $35,000 $35,000

2033 7th Line SW Engineering – Design (Embankment Stabilization) $12,500

6 4th Line SW Engineering – Design (Waterproof & Pave) $10,000

2007 15 Sideroad Engineering – Design (Waterproof & Pave) $10,000

2033 7th Line SW Construction – Rehabilitation (Embankment Stabilization) $60,000

6 4th Line SW Construction – Waterproof and Pave $50,000

2007 15 Sideroad Construction - Waterproof and Pave $40,000

16 250 Sideroad Construction – Rock Protection along Abutment Walls $15,000

2030 240 Sideroad Construction - Rehabilitation $60,000

18 2nd Line NE Engineering – Design (Rehabilitation) $25,000

7 7th Line SW Construction - Rehabilitation $370,000

18 2nd Line NE Construction – Rehabilitation (keeping existing barrier) $230,000

14 4th Line SW Engineering – Design (Scoped Rehabilitation) $25,000

9 8th Line SW Engineering – Design (Scoped Rehabilitation) $25,000

14 4th Line SW Construction – Scoped Rehabilitation $200,000

9 8th Line SW Construction – Scoped Rehabilitation $250,000

5 Year Total $1,417,500

$282,500

5 YEAR CAPTIAL PLAN - BRIDGES

2025

$450,000

2029

$600,000

$50,000

2026

2027

2028



 
Below is a chart of the Township’s existing equipment, make & 
model and the age of each piece of equipment:  

 

 

Recommendation 

THAT the Infrastructure and Emergency Management Committee receive the Report of 

Craig Micks, Public Works Superintendent and Kaitlin Dinnick, Deputy Clerk/ Planning 

Coordinator dated November 18th, 2025, entitled Five (5) Year Capital Plan Summary; 

AND THAT the Committee recommended to Council that they review and apply this 

information during 2026 budget discussions. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted: 

Craig Micks, Public Works Superintendent 

Kaitlin Dinnick, Deputy Clerk/Planning Coordinator  

 

# Equipment Model Year Age

#1 Pick-up Truck Ford F150 2016 9

#2 Plow Truck Western Star 2004 21

#3 Water Truck Western Star 2002 23

#4 Plow Truck Volvo 2007 18

#5 Plow Truck Volvo 2010 15

#6 Plow Truck International 2014 11

#7 Pick-up Truck GMC Sierra 2011 14

#8 Plow Truck Western Star 2022 3

#9 Dually Truck Ford 550 2023 2

#10 Pick-up Truck Ford F150 2025 0

#11 Plow Truck Freightliner 2025 0

GR #2 Grader John Deere 2011 14

GR #1 Grader CAT 2005 20

GR #3 Grader John Deere 2015 10

Loader CAT 1986 39

Backhoe JCB 1999 26

CURRENT EQUIPMENT IN PUBLIC WORKS



Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles

SPEED DATA ANALYSIS



Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles

SPEED DATA ANALYSIS



Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles

Site Code: test1 Comment 1:
Station ID: 0 Comment 2:
Location 1: 318235 8th Line NE Comment 3:
Location 2: Comment 4:
Location 3: Latitude: 44.215790
Location 4: Longitude: -80.292229

1

Combined Lanes 2025-09-15 to 2025-09-21

Peak Analysis
Classes Excluded From Peaks: None
Date AM

Peak
Hour

Volume
Highest
Interval

Time

Highest
Interval
Volume

Peak
Hour

Factor

Pm
Peak

Hour
Volume

Highest
Interval

Time

Highest
Interval
Volume

Peak
Hour

Factor
2025-09-15 No Volume 3:54 PM 21 3:56 PM 8 0.66
2025-09-16 12:30 AM 15 1:09 AM 6 0.63 6:29 PM 20 6:51 PM 7 0.71
2025-09-17 12:00 AM 14 12:20 AM 7 0.50 5:42 PM 22 5:42 PM 10 0.55
2025-09-18 1:26 AM 10 2:09 AM 4 0.63 4:35 PM 13 4:40 PM 4 0.81
2025-09-19 12:00 AM 13 12:00 AM 5 0.65 9:04 PM 26 9:04 PM 8 0.81
2025-09-20 12:04 AM 12 12:06 AM 5 0.60 8:34 PM 27 8:37 PM 12 0.56
2025-09-21 12:00 AM 21 12:30 AM 10 0.53 No Volume

Pace Speed - KPH
Classes Excluded From Pace:
Speed Number Percent
71 - 85 306 31.8%

Percentile Speeds
Percentile 5th 10th 15th 20th 25th 30th 35th 40th 45th 50th 55th 60th 65th 70th 75th 80th 85th 90th
Speed - KPH 20 38 45 50 56 59 63 66 68 71 72 75 78 80 83 85 87 92

Vehicles Traveling Greater Than 50.0 KPH
Total Volume 961
Total Greater Than 50.0 778
Percent Greater Than 50.0  81.0%

Mean, Median, and Mode Averages
Mean: 68.4
Median (50th %): 71.0
Mode: 72.0

Classification Statistics
Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Class 5

961 0 0 0 0 0
100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

AADT
Date Lane Volume x User x Daily = ADT x Season =

2025-09-15 Direction X, Lane 1 55 1.00 1.00 55 1.00
2025-09-15 Direction X, Lane 2 55 1.00 1.00 55 1.00
2025-09-15 Day Total 110 110
2025-09-16 Direction X, Lane 1 91 1.00 1.00 91 1.00
2025-09-16 Direction X, Lane 2 93 1.00 1.00 93 1.00
2025-09-16 Day Total 184 184
2025-09-17 Direction X, Lane 1 55 1.00 1.00 55 1.00
2025-09-17 Direction X, Lane 2 105 1.00 1.00 105 1.00
2025-09-17 Day Total 160 160
2025-09-18 Direction X, Lane 1 40 1.00 1.00 40 1.00



Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles

Site Code: test1 Comment 1:
Station ID: 0 Comment 2:
Location 1: 318235 8th Line NE Comment 3:
Location 2: Comment 4:
Location 3: Latitude: 44.215790
Location 4: Longitude: -80.292229

2

2025-09-18 Direction X, Lane 2 53 1.00 1.00 53 1.00
2025-09-18 Day Total 93 93
2025-09-19 Direction X, Lane 1 94 1.00 1.00 94 1.00
2025-09-19 Direction X, Lane 2 84 1.00 1.00 84 1.00
2025-09-19 Day Total 178 178
2025-09-20 Direction X, Lane 1 95 1.00 1.00 95 1.00
2025-09-20 Direction X, Lane 2 119 1.00 1.00 119 1.00
2025-09-20 Day Total 214 214
2025-09-21 Direction X, Lane 1 7 1.00 1.00 7 1.00
2025-09-21 Direction X, Lane 2 15 1.00 1.00 15 1.00
2025-09-21 Day Total 22 22

Total 961 961
Average 137 137

Date Lane Volume x User x Daily = ADT x Season =



Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles

SPEED DATA ANALYSIS



Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles

SPEED DATA ANALYSIS



Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles

Site Code: test1 Comment 1:
Station ID: 0 Comment 2:
Location 1: 585499 County Rd 17 Comment 3:
Location 2: Comment 4:
Location 3: Latitude: 44.137878
Location 4: Longitude: -80.192070

1

Combined Lanes 2025-10-20 to 2025-10-21

Peak Analysis
Classes Excluded From Peaks: None
Date AM

Peak
Hour

Volume
Highest
Interval

Time

Highest
Interval
Volume

Peak
Hour

Factor

Pm
Peak

Hour
Volume

Highest
Interval

Time

Highest
Interval
Volume

Peak
Hour

Factor
2025-10-20 No Volume 3:23 PM 255 3:29 PM 72 0.89
2025-10-21 7:55 AM 221 7:58 AM 63 0.88 2:04 PM 204 2:43 PM 61 0.84

Pace Speed - KPH
Classes Excluded From Pace:
Speed Number Percent
76 - 90 1,451 59.4%

Percentile Speeds
Percentile 5th 10th 15th 20th 25th 30th 35th 40th 45th 50th 55th 60th 65th 70th 75th 80th 85th 90th
Speed - KPH 69 73 75 76 78 79 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 89 90 92 93 95

Vehicles Traveling Greater Than 50.0 KPH
Total Volume 2,442
Total Greater Than 50.0 2,418
Percent Greater Than 50.0  99.0%

Mean, Median, and Mode Averages
Mean: 84.6
Median (50th %): 84.0
Mode: 84.0

Classification Statistics
Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Class 5

2442 0 0 0 0 0
100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

AADT
Date Lane Volume x User x Daily = ADT x Season =

2025-10-20 Direction X, Lane 1 562 1.00 1.00 562 1.00
2025-10-20 Direction X, Lane 2 364 1.00 1.00 364 1.00
2025-10-20 Day Total 926 926
2025-10-21 Direction X, Lane 1 767 1.00 1.00 767 1.00
2025-10-21 Direction X, Lane 2 749 1.00 1.00 749 1.00
2025-10-21 Day Total 1,516 1,516

Total 2442 2442
Average 1220 1220















 
REPORT 

 

TO: Council 

FROM: Mason Bellamy 

DATE: November 5, 2025 

REPORT: TPS.25.23 

SUBJECT: Road Surface Conversion Policy 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council receive report TPS.25.23, Road Surface Conversion Policy for information; 
and  
That Council direct staff to bring forward a by-law to adopt Road Surface Conversion 
Policy as outlined in the report.  
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
At the February 26, 2025 Council Meeting the following resolution was passed; 
2025-93 
Dane Nielsen - Nadia Dubyk 
That Council direct staff to draft a Road Surface Policy including parameters for 
maintaining and changing the current road surface(s).  
CARRIED. 
  
  
The policy will provide criteria and guidance that will be used to evaluate gravel road 
upgrades and asphalt road downgrades. Residents are able to recommend roads 
through a petition process and staff will have a set criteria for when to recommend 
gravel roads be included for upgrade or when asphalt roads will be recommended to 
change the surface type to gravel.  
  
The policy will be used primarily for 3 purposes: 
  
1. Resident groups can petition to have a road segment or road section upgraded per 
the attached policy. Petitions can also be submitted as local improvements where 
residents cover the complete cost to upgrade the road. 
  
2.Staff can utilize the policy to review gravel roads that require greater than average 
maintenance to support recommendations for upgrades to asphalt. 
  

Page 1 of 16



3. Staff will review all applicable asphalt roads requiring replacement to see if they are 
eligible for a downgrade of in road surface type to gravel. 
 
OPERATIONAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
A draft of the Road Surface Conversion policy is attached to this report. 
 
GREY HIGHLANDS STRATEGIC PLAN: 
Respected Environment - Manage municipal resources in a responsible and sustainable 
manner, considering future needs for adaptation and community resiliency 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
No direct financial impacts in the implication of this policy. Implementation of this policy 
will help guide annual and multi-year budgeting for capital assets. All affected projects 
will be directed to annual budgeting process.  
 
STAFFING IMPACT: 
Adoption of the Road Surface Conversation Policy will affect staff time. Roads slated for 
reconstruction will need to be compared to the policy criteria. As well resident petitions 
are expected to take a considerable amount of time to be reviewed by staff.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 
+1 Low Positive Impact -  Well designed roads can contribute to long-term sustainability 
and resilience in the face of environmental challenges / climate change 
 
Approved By: Status: 
Chris Cornfield, Director of 
Transportation 

Approved - 23 Oct 2025 

Anna McCarthy, Director of 
Finance/Treasurer 

Approved - 27 Oct 2025 

Karen Govan, Chief 
Administrative Officer 

Approved - 29 Oct 2025 

 

Page 2 of 16



 

The Corporation of the Municipality of  
Grey Highlands 

206 Toronto Street South, Unit 1, Box 409 
Markdale, ON N0C 1H0 

Tel.: 519-986-1216 
 

 

 

   
 

Grey Highlands Policy 
Policy Name: Road Surface Conversion Policy 
Policy Number: A09-T- 
Department: Transportation & Public Spaces 
Authority: By-law 2025-xx 
Effective Date:  
Supersedes: 
Last modified: 
 

1. Purpose 
The purpose of this Policy is to provide Council, municipal staff and residents with a consistent process 
in identifying gravel roads for consideration for upgrades to asphalt; and a consistent process in 
identifying asphalt roads for consideration to be returned to a gravel surface.  
 

2. Scope 
This policy applies to all roads owned and maintained by the Municipality of Grey Highlands unless 
otherwise specified.  
 

3. Definitions  
 

Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT): The average twenty-four-hour, two-way traffic under normal 
conditions.  
Council: The duly elected Council of the Municipality of Grey Highlands. 
Gravel Road: A road surface that is not paved or surface treated.  
High Class Bituminous (HBC) Paved Surface: A surface with a wearing layer or layers of asphalt.  
Highway Classification: The class in accordance with the Minimum Maintenance Standards for 
Municipal Highways (239/02), as amended under the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended.  
Local Improvement: The improvement of a roadway in accordance with the Local Improvement Act 
(R.S.O. 1990, C. L.26). 
Low Class Bituminous (LCB) Paved Surface: A surface with a wearing layer or layers of asphalt 
emulsion and chip, commonly referred to as tar and chip.  
Municipality: The Municipality of Grey Highlands. 
Platform Surface Width: The horizontal distance measured from top of ditch slope of one side of the 
road to the top of ditch slope on the opposite side.  
Right-of-Way (ROW): In a municipal context, a Right of Way (ROW) refers to a designated strip of land 
owned and maintained by the municipality for public use and infrastructure. This area typically 
includes the roadway used for vehicular traffic, boulevards which may be landscaped or grassed, 
sidewalks for pedestrian access, and roadside ditches that serve drainage and stormwater 

Page 3 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 2 of 12 
 

management functions. The ROW may also contain underground or overhead utilities such as water, 
sewer, electricity, and telecommunications infrastructure. Municipalities hold legal authority over the 
ROW, allowing them to regulate its use, perform maintenance, and grant access for public services and 
development projects. 
Road Section: A section of road between two other roads or as defined in the roads management plan. 
Road Segment: A portion of a section of road. 
Seasonal Roads: A road that does not receive winter maintenance, not applicable in this policy 
Unmaintained Road: A road that is not open by bylaw nor receives any municipal maintenance. 
Primary Route: A Municipal road that has a AADT greater than 400 or more vehicles per day. 

 

4. Policy  
4.1. Evaluation for Modifying the Road Surface Type  

 
From time to time, the municipality may find it necessary to modify the surface of a road. This 
section of the policy outlines the Road Scoring Criteria, a Scoring Rubric, and Assessment 
Recommendations for both upgrading to hard surface, and returning a hard surface road to gravel. 
 
a) Road Scoring Criteria: The Municipality will evaluate the following factors when assessing roads:  
 

i) Traffic Volume: Primary consideration Roads with an AADT of 400 or more vehicles per day. 
Secondary consideration Roads with an AADT between 300-399 vehicles per day. 

ii) Truck Traffic Volume: Primary consideration on roads with greater than 15% of Truck 
Traffic. Secondary consideration on roads with greater than 10% of Truck Traffic. 

iii) Connectivity: Roads that connect to a major highways, or a county road, or serve as a 
primary route between communities. Roads that provide access to a significant public 
facility (e.g., schools, hospitals, government buildings). 

iv) Economic Impact: Roads that serve industrial or commercial areas with high economic 
importance to the municipality. Roads that support recreational activities vital to the local 
economy. 

v) Safety Considerations: Roads with a history of accidents or safety concerns related to their 
gravel surface. Roads where dust control is a significant safety issue. 

vi) Density: Roads that are a part of a Former plan of subdivision, hamlet rural settlement or 

will be given priority consideration to maintain hard surface. With the density of driveways 

per km given secondary consideration. 

vii) Maintenance Costs: Roads where the long-term maintenance costs of the existing or 
proposed gravel road is projected to be higher than the average gravel road section.  

viii) Environmental Factors: Roads where asphalt would significantly reduce environmental 
impacts (e.g., dust, erosion).  

ix) Development Plans: Roads in areas slated for future development or population growth. 
 

b) Additional Factors: The Municipality considers the following additional factors when scoring the 
roads in consideration for potential upgrades: 
i) Financial: Where an analysis of the capital costs, operation costs and life cycle costs 

indicate a savings to the Municipality or where there is a significant savings to the 
Municipality by combining/splitting the upgrading of adjacent roads. 

ii) Condition, Structure and Drainage: Where the road has been determined to have sufficient 
structure and adequate drainage to support the increased traffic flow.  

Page 4 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 3 of 12 
 

iii) Platform Surface Width: Where the road meets the minimum Surface Platform Width 
standard for Paved Roads in accordance with the Ministry of Transportation Ontario’s 
Geometric Design Standards, and Municipal Design Standards ( as amended).   

iv) Horizontal and Vertical Alignment: Where the existing horizontal and vertical alignment of 
the road is compatible with the posted speed limit. Recommendations may be conditional 
pending Engineer Sign off on design criteria  

v) Risk Management: Where the non-standard condition of the road is correctable by 
upgrading to a surface treated road or paved surface and upgrading is determined to 
reduce liability issues.  

vi) Operational Benefits: Where there is a benefit by the reduction of operational and 
seasonal maintenance activities. Examples of operation benefits include but not limited to; 
gravel roads located in isolation requiring significant travel time, roads that experience 
consistent erosion or are washed out frequently.  

vii) A petition: Where a petition is received from residents under Ontario Regulation 586/06 
(Local Improvements) and subsequently approved by Council in accordance with the 
regulation. 
 

c) Assessment Recommendations to Upgrade: The Municipality may upgrade a gravel road to 
asphalt based on following 3 Priority levels taking into consideration additional factors: 

i. High Priority – Where the gravel road scores between 80-100 points on the Road 
Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be upgraded. 

ii. Low Priority – Where the gravel road scores between 60-79 points on the Road Scoring 
Criteria and is recommended to be upgraded in the future based on overall budget 
capacity. 

iii. No Recommendation – Where the gravel road scores between 0-59 points on the Road 
Scoring Criteria and is not recommended for upgrades. 

i) Where the gravel road has been allotted as high priority, as determined in accordance with 
Section 4.1.a) of this Policy, that road segment will be included in the next annual budget 
process. 

ii) Where the gravel road has been allotted as low priority, as determined in accordance with 
Section 4.1.a) of this Policy, that road segment may be included in the next annual budget 
process, as budget capacity permits. 

iii) Through the annual budget process, Council may approve, defer, or reject requests based 
on strategic priorities and funding availability. 

iv) If the annual budget request is deferred, the request will be added to the 2-5 year capital 
plan for high priority requests and the 10-year capital plan for low priority scored requests. 
 

d) Assessment Recommendations to Downgrade: The Municipality may downgrade hard surface 
roads based on following 3 Priority levels taking into consideration additional factors: 

i. No Recommendation – Where the hard surface road scores between 70- 100 points on 
the Road Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be remain hard surface. 

ii. Maintain Surface in Longterm – Where the hard surface road scores between 51-69 
points on the Road Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be maintained as a hard 
surface road. However, if the current condition is severely deteriorated, it may be 
temporarily maintained as a gravel road and be placed in the 2-5 year capital budget for 
consideration. 

Page 5 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 4 of 12 
 

iv. Downgrade Recommendation – Where the hard surface road scores between 0-59 
points on the Road Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be downgraded to a gravel 
road when the hard surface life cycle ends.  

 
e) Scoring Rubrics: The Municipality will use the rubrics for evaluation purposes as per Schedule A 

for Road Surface upgrades and Schedule B for Road surface downgrades. 
 
 

4.2. Process to Initiate Upgrade Consideration 
 

a) Identification Method 1 - Resident Petition to Upgrade Gravel Road to Asphalt 
 
This policy section outlines the process by which residents may formally petition the Municipality to 
upgrade a municipally maintained gravel road segment to asphalt. This includes roads that are not 
currently designated for upgrade under capital plans or exempted by municipal criteria (e.g., 
seasonal roads, low-use access routes). It ensures community involvement, infrastructure planning, 
and alignment with the Road Surface Conversion Policy. 
 

i) Petitions may only include one road section, excluding settlement areas which can include 
multiple sections not exceeding a maximum of 2 kilometers per petition. Settlement areas 
are defined as Primary and Secondary settlement areas set out in the current Grey 
Highlands Official Plan. 

ii) Resident petitions will only be accepted once every 5 years per road segment. A new 
petition for a specific road cannot be accepted for 5 years after the last one was 
submitted. 

iii) Eligibility Criteria: To be considered for an asphalt upgrade, the petition must meet the 
following criteria: 

i. Road Type: The road segment must be an open and municipally maintained gravel 
road. This policy does not apply to seasonal, private, or unopened road 
allowances. 

ii. Defined Road Segment: The petition must clearly identify the road segment 
proposed for upgrade, including start and end points. 

iii. Resident Support Threshold: At least two-thirds (2/3) of properties abutting the 
defined road segment must sign the petition in support. If the road segment is to 
proceed as a resident petition local improvement, 100% resident support is 
required. 

iv. Connectivity Requirement: One end of the proposed road segment must connect 
directly to an existing hardtop road to ensure continuity of the transportation 
network. 

v. Feasibility: The road must be suitable for asphalt upgrade based on grading, 
drainage, and environmental considerations. 
 

iv) Local improvements: A resident petition may be processed as a Local Improvement under 
the Local Improvement Act 1990., with the support of all property owners in that road 
section. Costs would be shared between property owners, and if applicable the 
Municipality, following O. Reg 586/06 Local Improvement Charges-Priority Lien Status 
 

Page 6 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 5 of 12 
 

 
b) Identification Method 2 - Staff Review for Upgrading Gravel Roads to Asphalt 
 

i) To ensure consistent, transparent, and data-driven decision-making in the upgrade of 
gravel roads to asphalt, this policy outlines the criteria and process by which the 
municipality may consider such upgrades. The goal is to prioritize upgrades that deliver 
measurable public benefit while maintaining fiscal and environmental responsibility. 

ii) This policy section applies to all municipally maintained gravel roads that are not 
currently designated for upgrade under capital plans or exempted by municipal criteria 
(e.g., seasonal roads, low-use access routes). 

iii) Gravel roads may be considered for upgrade to asphalt only when supported by 
documented issues such as traffic studies, safety reports, maintenance logs, community 
petitions and when they meet established criteria. This process is designed to limit 
discretionary decision-making and ensure upgrades are justified by objective data and 
community needs. 

 
c)  Review Process 

 
i) The Transportation and Public Spaces Department will compile and assess all relevant 

data using criteria found in Section 4 of this policy. 
ii) A standardized scoring matrix found in Schedule A and Schedule B of this policy will be 

used to evaluate each criterion and determine eligibility. 
iii) Recommendations will be submitted to Council for final approval. 

 
d) Limitations on Staff Discretion: 

Staff may not initiate upgrades based solely on anecdotal observations or informal requests. All upgrade 
considerations must be based on documented evidence and evaluated through the standardized 
process outlined within the policy. 

 

4.3. Returning Hard Surface Roads to Gravel 
 

a) This policy section applies to all asphalt roads within the municipality that are scheduled for 
replacement due to age, deterioration, or structural failure. When roads have been identified as 
being in poor condition through inspections. This review will promote sustainable infrastructure 
management and ensure efficient allocation of municipal resources by evaluating each 
identified road section for potential downgrade. 

 
b) This policy section does not apply to roads that are exempt from downgrade based on municipal 

criteria including emergency access routes, transit corridors, or primary and secondary 
settlement areas. 

c) All qualifying asphalt roads shall be reviewed for downgrade consideration to gravel. 
 

d) Review Process: 
 

i) The Transportation and Public Spaces Department shall initiate the review upon 
identification of a qualifying road. 

ii) Staff will conduct the evaluation and prepare a recommendation report. 

Page 7 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 6 of 12 
 

iii) Recommendations will be presented to the Council. 
iv) Exceptions: 

Roads explicitly exempt under municipal criteria shall bypass the downgrade review and 
proceed with standard replacement procedures.  

 
e) Roads that are located within the Primary and Secondary Settlement areas, as identified in the 

current Grey Highlands Official Plan (OP), shall not be considered for downgrade as part of this 
policy.  

 
f) The Municipality will review the capital costs associated with improving the gravel roads to a 

desired minimum surface width with appropriate drainage and road geometry required to 
support the conversion to hard surface. The life cycle costs of each proposed upgrade will also 
be reviewed. 

 
g) Capital and maintenance costs for asphalt surface compared to returning to gravel will be 

calculated by staff on a case-by-case basis for each individual road section.   
 
h) With the conversion of hard surface road to gravel, it is important to note that there is the 

possibility of undesirable impacts arising from the conversion such as: 
 

• Increase in the maintenance gravel program. 

• Increase in dust.  

• Increase in grader hours based on the level of service in the Minimum Maintenance 
Standards for gravel roads.  

• Complaints from local residents and road users due to the change in surface type.  

• Potential property value impacts on segments that have changes in road surface type. 
 

4.4. Council Approval for Road Surface Changes 
 

a) To ensure consistent and accountable decision-making, this section confirms that all road 
surface change recommendations—whether upgrades or downgrades—require final approval 
by Council. 

 
b) All recommendations to upgrade gravel roads to asphalt or downgrade asphalt roads to 

alternative surfaces must be approved by council. This applies to proposals initiated by 
municipal staff or submitted through formal resident petitions. 

 
c) Authority and Process: 

i) Municipal staff will evaluate roads and prepare recommendations based on the criteria 
outlined in this policy. 

ii) All recommendations must be supported by documented evidence and submitted by staff 
to Council for consideration. 

iii) Only resident petitions that attain the high priority or low priority scoring will be brought 
to Council for consideration. 

iv) Only petitions that meet the applicable criteria will be brought to council for 
consideration, those not meeting the applicable criteria, the petitioner will be notified by 
staff of the review outcome. 

Page 8 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 7 of 12 
 

v) Council holds sole authority to approve, modify, or reject any road surface change. 
 

d) Limitation of Staff Authority: 
i) No road surface change may be implemented without a formal resolution of Council. 
ii) If Council defers a road surface upgrade, the road section will be added to the 2–5-year 

capital plan for high priority scores and the 10-year plan for low priority scores. 
iii) If downgrade recommendations are not supported by council, replacement of the road 

section will be included in the 2–5-year capital plan.  
 

5. References 
 

Municipality of Grey Highlands Roads Needs Study 2023 update 

O.Reg 239/2 Minimum Maintenance Standards for Municipal Highways 

Local Improvement Act, R.S.O 1990, C L.26 

 

6. Appendices 
 

Schedule A - Scoring Rubric for Upgrading Gravel Roads to Hard Surface 

Schedule B - Scoring Rubric for Downgrading Hard Surface Roads to Gravel 

Schedule C - Resident Petition Form for Gravel-to-Asphalt Road Upgrade 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 8 of 12 
 

Schedule A 

 
Scoring Rubric for Upgrading Gravel Roads to Hard Surface 

 

Criteria Score Range Scoring Details 

Traffic Volume 0–30 points 30 pts: AADT ≥ 400 

20 pts: AADT 300–399 

10 pts: AADT 200–299 

5 pts: AADT 100–199 

0 pts: AADT < 100 

Truck Traffic Volume 0–5 points 5 pts: > 15% 

3 pts: > 10% 

0 pts: < 10% 

Connectivity 0–20 points 20 pts: Connects to major highway/county road AND is a 

primary route 

15 pts: Connects to major highway/county road OR is a 

primary route 

10 pts: Access to public facilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, 

etc.) 

5 pts: Moderate connectivity 

0 pts: Low connectivity 

Economic Impact 0–5 points 5 pts: Serves major industrial/commercial areas 

3 pts: Serves minor industrial/commercial areas 

0 pts: Limited direct economic impact 

Safety Considerations 0–15 points 15 pts: High accident history related to gravel surface AND 

significant dust control issues 

10 pts: Moderate accident history related to gravel surface 

OR significant dust control issues 

5 pts: Minor concerns related to gravel surfaces 

0 pts: No significant issues related to gravels surfaces 

Maintenance Costs 0–10 points 10 pts: Projected maintenance costs significantly higher 

than average gravel maintenance 

7 pts: Projected maintenance costs moderately higher 

than average gravel maintenance. 

3 pts: Projected asphalt maintenance costs slightly higher 

than average gravel maintenance. 

Page 10 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 9 of 12 
 

0 pts: Projected asphalt maintenance costs equal to lower-

than-average gravel maintenance. 

Environmental Factors 0–5 points 5 pts: Conversion would significantly reduce 

environmental impacts (e.g., dust, erosion) 

3 pts: Moderate environmental benefits from conversion 

0 pts: Limited or no environmental benefits from 

conversion 

Development Plans 0–10 points 10 pts: Road is in an area with significant pre-existing 

development or with approved plans for significant 

development or population growth within 5 years 

5 pts: Road is in an area with minor pre-existing 

development or is in an area with potential for 

development or moderate growth within 10 years 

0 pts: No significant development or growth planned in 

the foreseeable future 

i. High Priority – Where the gravel road scores between 80-100 points on the Road 
Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be upgraded. 

ii. Low Priority – Where the gravel road scores between 60-79 points on the Road Scoring 
Criteria and is recommended to be upgraded in the future based on overall budget 
capacity. 

iii. No Recommendation – Where the gravel road scores between 0-59 points on the Road 
Scoring Criteria and is not recommended for upgrades. 

  

Page 11 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 10 of 12 
 

Schedule B 
 

Scoring Rubric for Downgrading Hard Surface Roads to Gravel 

 

Criteria Score Range Scoring Details 

Traffic Volume 0–20 points 20 pts: AADT ≥ 400 

15 pts: AADT 300–399 

10 pts: AADT 200–299 

5 pts: AADT 100–199 

0 pts: AADT < 100 

Truck Traffic Volume 0–10 points 10 pts: > 15% 
5 pts: > 10% 
3 pts: > 5% < 10% 
0 pts: >5% 

Connectivity 0–20 points 20 pts: Connects to major highway/county road AND is a 

primary route between communities 

15 pts: Connects to major highway/county road OR is a 

primary route 

10 pts: Provides direct and significant access to public 

facilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, etc.) 

5 pts: Secondary route with moderate connectivity 

importance 

0 pts: Low connectivity 

Economic Impact 0–5 points 5 pts: Serves major industrial/commercial areas crucial to 

local economy 

3 pts: Serves minor industrial/commercial areas 

0 pts: Limited direct economic impact 

Density 0–20 points 20 pts: Part of a Former plan of Subdivision, Hamlet or 

rural settlement area 

15 pts: 10+ driveways per km 

8 pts: Between 4-9 driveways per km 

0 pts: less than 3 driveways per km 

Maintenance Costs 0–10 points 10 pts: Projected maintenance costs significantly higher 

than average gravel maintenance 

7 pts: Projected maintenance costs moderately higher 

than average gravel maintenance. 

3 pts: Projected asphalt maintenance costs slightly higher 

than average gravel maintenance. 

Page 12 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 11 of 12 
 

0 pts: Projected asphalt maintenance costs equal to lower-

than-average gravel maintenance. 

Environmental Factors 0–5 points 5 pts: Conversion would significantly reduce 

environmental impacts (e.g., dust, erosion) 

3 pts: Moderate environmental benefits from conversion 

0 pts: Limited or no environmental benefits from 

conversion 

Development Plans 0–10 points 10 pts: Road is in an area with significant pre-existing 

development or with approved plans for significant 

development or population growth within 5 years 

5 pts: Road is in an area with minor pre-existing 

development or is in an area with potential for 

development or moderate growth within 10 years 

0 pts: No significant development or growth planned in 

the foreseeable future 

 

i) No Recommendation – Where the hard surface road scores between 70- 100 points on the 

Road Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be remain hard surface. 

ii) Maintain Surface in Longterm – Where the hard surface road scores between 51-69 points 

on the Road Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be maintained as a hard surface road. 

However, if the current condition is severely deteriorated, it may be temporarily maintained 

as a gravel road and be placed in the 2-5 year capital budget for consideration. 

iii) Downgrade Recommendation – Where the hard surface road scores between 0-59 points on 

the Road Scoring Criteria and is recommended to be downgraded to a gravel road when the 

hard surface life cycle ends.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 16



   
 

info@greyhighlands.ca www.greyhighlands.ca 12 of 12 
 

Schedule C 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resident Petition Form for Gravel-to-Asphalt Road Upgrade 

Page 14 of 16



Resident Petition Form for Gravel-to-Asphalt Road Upgrade 

1. Applicant Information 

Full Name: ____________________________________________ 

Address: _____________________________________________ 

Phone Number: ________________________________________ 

Email: _______________________________________________ 

2. Road Segment Details 

Start Point of Road Segment: ____________________________ 

End Point of Road Segment: _____________________________ 

Approximate Length (in meters): _________________________ 

3. Connectivity Confirmation 

Does one end of the proposed road segment connect to an existing asphalt road? 

☐ Yes    ☐ No 

4. Eligibility Checklist 

☐ The road is an open and municipally maintained gravel road. 

☐ The road segment is clearly defined with start and end points. 

☐ At least two-thirds (2/3) of abutting property owners have signed this petition. 

☐ The road segment connects to an existing asphalt road. 

5. Supporting Property Owners (Minimum 2/3 Required) 

Please list the names, addresses, and signatures of supporting property owners below: 

1. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

2. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

3. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

Page 15 of 16



4. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

5. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

6. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

7. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

8. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

9. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

10. Name: ____________________  Address: ____________________  Signature: 

____________________ 

6. Submission Instructions 

Submit the completed petition form to the Transportation and Public Spaces Department. Ensure 

all required fields are completed and eligibility criteria are met. The Municipality will verify 

ownership, signatures, and road connectivity before proceeding with evaluation under the Road 

Surface Conversion Policy. 

Page 16 of 16












	Nov 18 2025 Infrastructure & EM Agenda 
	October 6 2025 Infrastructure & EM Minutes
	Report 2026 PW Capital Expenditures Craig Micks PW & Kaitlin Dinnick
	Report 5 year capital plan Craig Micks PW & Kaitlin Dinnick - 2026 Report
	318235 8th Line NE - Speed Data Analysis
	318235 8th Line NE - Statistics
	585499 County Road 17 - Speed Data Analysis
	585499 County Road 17 - Statistics
	Email from Kaitlin DeVore Request for Speed Limit Reduction on County Road 17
	RJ Burnside and Associates Technical Memorandum Bridge 7 Rehabilitation
	TPS.25.23-Road Surface Conversion Policy - Pdf
	Cover
	Road Surface Review Policy 2025.10.22- Draft

	Ontario Launches Pothole Prevention and Repair Program



